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77 ST. HELEN’S ROAD
History

Built in 1924 for G. Lawford, this brick residence, which has retained its
original brick fence, was designed and/or built by H.C. Hince of 305 Pigdon
Street, North Carlton. An early MMBW drainage plan shows the house with a
brick garage at the rear.!

Description

A superb californian bungalow with wide verandah stretching across the
frontage and returning on each side. The roof is hipped terracotta tiles with
a gable let in centrally. This still retains its dark oiled shingles. The
verandah is formed by heavy masonry piers comprising a brick base and tapering
rendered upper section. At each end these are open between to give access to
the verandah. Elsewhere a balustrade is formed by brickwork with a swagged
render capping. The fence is similarly detailed with an open render paired
between the piers.

A broad return drive sweeps from one side to the other.

The main body of the house is concealed by the deep verandah. An extensive
but sympathetic alteration has occurred at the rear to form an upper level.

Assessment

The Californian bungalow was partly introduced from America, and partly grew
out of the domestic Queen Anne and garden bungalow styles before the first
world war. It was ideally adapted to the Melbourne suburbs where there were
relatively large blocks and a strong desire to create a garden. Even the
smallest homes could have Californian bungalow pretensions and the State
Savings Bank promoted their execution with its home ownership scheme. Not
many Californian Bungalow designs were executed by architects. Although in
its early stages, architects interpreted Greene and Greene’s American styles,
it was the builders who adapted quickly to the style, realizing its economical
form and suitability to the Australian climate.

This example is amongst the best architecturally, and the most intact in
Hawthorn, and is a fine example at the Metropolitan level. Similar wide
verandahed designs are found in the suburbs which developed in the 1920s
including Camberwell, Eaglemont and parts of Kew. The large example on the
corner of The Eyrie and The Righi, in Eaglemont is a fine comparative example
which shows a similar interaction with the landscape and like this one a
carefully executed matching front fence. This example is much more elegantly
styled however and relies on well proportioned simplicity to achieve its
effect. Remarkably intact externally.

Significance Metropolitan

1s Architecturally significant as one of the finest Californian Bungalows
in Hawthorn, a building type extensively used in the period between the
wars. An excellent example at the metropolitan level and substantially
intact.

1, MMBW House Service Cover No. 135014 (1924-87).
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